ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
HOUSE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COVWM TTEE
March 24, 2011
8:09 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Bob Lynn, Chair
Representative Wes Keller, Vice Chair
Represent ati ve Paul Seaton
Representati ve Peggy W1 son
Representative Max G uenberg
Representati ve Pete Petersen
Representati ve Kyl e Johansen

VEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 88

" An Act prohi biting a court, arbitrator, nmedi at or,
adm ni strative agency, or enforcenent authority from applying a
law, rule, or provision of an agreenent that violates an
i ndividual's right under the Constitution of the State of Al aska
or the United States Constitution.”

- MOVED CSHB 88(STA) QUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE Bl LL NO. 162

"An Act requiring all voters at the polls to exhibit a permtted
form of photo identification; relating to the counting of
absent ee and questioned ballots; and providing for a voter photo
identification card to be furnished to certain voters."

- BILL HEARI NG CANCELED
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 88

SHORT TITLE. USE OF FORElI GN LAW
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) GATTO

01/ 18/ 11 (H PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 14/ 11
01/ 18/ 11 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 18/ 11 (H STA, JWD

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -1- March 24, 2011



03/ 17/ 11 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

03/ 17/ 11 (H Heard & Held

03/17/ 11 (H) M NUTE( STA)

03/ 22/ 11 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

03/ 22/ 11 (H) <Bill Hearing Reschedul ed to 3/24/11>
03/ 24/ 11 (H) STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

W TNESS REG STER

KAREN SAWYER, St af f

Representative Carl Gatto

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented HB 88 on behalf of Representative
Gatto, sponsor.

MARY ELLEN BEARDSLEY, Assistant Attorney General

Conmmrer ci al / Fai r Busi ness Section

Cvil Division - Anchorage

Depart ment of Law (DQL)

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answer ed questions during the hearing on HB
88.

JEFFREY M TTMAN, Executive Director

Anmerican G vil Liberties Union (ACLU) of Al aska

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provi ded testinony and answered questions
during the hearing on HB 88.

REPRESENTATI VE CARL GATTO

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: As sponsor, provided comments during the
heari ng on HB 88.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
8:09: 25 AM

CHAIR BOB LYNN called the House State Affairs Standing Commttee
meeting to order at 8:09 a.m Representatives Keller, Seaton,
Johansen, Petersen, Guenberg, and Lynn were present at the call
to order. Representative P. WIlson arrived as the neeting was
i n progress.

HB 88- USE OF FOREI GN LAW

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 2- March 24, 2011



CHAI R LYNN announced that the only order of business was HOUSE
BILL NO. 88, "An Act prohibiting a court, arbitrator, nediator
adm ni strative agency, or enforcenent authority from applying a
law, rule, or provision of an agreenent that violates an
individual's right under the Constitution of the State of Al aska
or the United States Constitution.”

8:09:40 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noved to adopt the conmttee substitute
(CS) for HB 88, Version 27-LS033\B, Bailey, 3/23/11.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG obj ected for the purpose of discussion.
8:10: 57 AM

KAREN SAWYER, Staff, Representative Carl GGatto, Alaska State
Legi sl ature, presented HB 88 on behalf of Representative Gatto,
sponsor. She reviewed that during the previous hearing on HB 88
[on 3/17/11], the commttee had expressed concern regardi ng how
the bill wuld affect corporations, business contracts, and
tribal |aw Subsequently, she noted, the bill sponsor received
a legal opinion from the Departnment of Law (DOL) [included in
the commttee packet], and used that legal opinion to conme up

with Version B. The two changes to the bill are found in
Version B, in subsections (f) and (g), beginning on page 2, |ine
23. She said although the attorney general states that there

woul d not be a problem for tribal laws, "there was an area that
said in limted circunstances, tribal nenbers may be subject to
the concurrent jurisdiction of tribal courts and state courts.™
She said that was included for clarification on the issue.

M5. SAWER noted that there are 17 states that have introduced
simlar legislation [list included in the commttee packet], and
many of them have amended their legislation wth |anguage that
states that "this section shall not apply to a corporation,
partnership, or other form of business association.”

8:13: 23 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON expressed appreciation for the anmendnents
made in Version B

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG renoved his objection. [There being no

further objection, Version B was before the committee as a work
draft.]

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 3- March 24, 2011



8:14: 22 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked for confirmation that a treaty
signed by the U S. would not be considered foreign |aw under HB
88.

M5. SAWER answered that is correct. She related that the
af orenenti oned | egal opinion states that the laws that directly
affect Alaska are federal statutes and regulations that
inplenent treaties, and these federal |aws preenpt state |aw.
In response to Representative G uenberg, she confirmed that the
| egal opinion is dated March 21, 2011

8:16: 36 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN cited a sentence in the second paragraph
of the legal opinion, which read as foll ows:

Therefore, in limted circunmstances, tribal nenbers
may be subject to the concurrent jurisdiction of the
tribal courts and the state courts.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN asked if there is a defined list of
t hose circunst ances.

8:17:46 AM

MARY ELLEN BEARDSLEY, Assi st ant At t or ney CGener al
Commerci al/Fair Business Section, Cvil Division - Anchorage,
Departnent of Law (DOL), responded that she does not have a |ist
and does not deal wth the tribal issues addressed by DO,
however, she said she could acquire a list of issues that could
ari se. She offered her understanding that there are sone

ci rcunst ances where there is concurrent jurisdiction - when both
tri bunal s have equal jurisdiction over an issue.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN indicated that he would contact the
depart nent. He then directed attention to M. Beardsley's
coorments in the [first full] paragraph on page 2 of the |[egal
opi nion, and asked her to confirm whether she neans that [using
foreign | aw] would be a rare occurrence.

V5. BEARDSLEY affirnmed that is correct.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -4- March 24, 2011



REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN ventured that that which HB 88 proposes
to address nmay never happen, but he opined that it is fine to
have the legislation in place just in case.

8:21:10 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG directed attention to the first
par agraph on page 3 of the legal opinion, regarding a notion to
nmove a case to Kenya, and asked if that was an Al aska case.

M5. BEARDSLEY responded yes, and confirnmed that was an [Al aska]
Superior Court deci sion.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said that is the first exanple he has
heard of such a motion in Al aska, and he said he would like a
citing or copy of the judge's opinion.

MS. BEARDSLEY suggested that Scott Taylor, the individual nore
closely involved wth that case, cont act Representative
Gruenberg directly.

CHAIR LYNN requested that that information be nmade available to
the entire conmittee.

8:23:36 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked Ms. Beardsley if she thinks HB 88
woul d 1 npact contractual rights entered into in contenplation of
marri age.

MS. BEARDSLEY said the bill could have that inpact, but said
there would have to be a determnation by the state court that
constitutional rights were being violated.

8:27:10 AM

M5. BEARDSLEY, in response to Representative Petersen, explained
that the purpose of the second paragraph on page 2 of the |ega
opinion was to illustrate that if a party willingly agrees to
file a dispute in a foreign venue, then HB 88 would not apply,
because foreign law - not Al aska |aw - woul d apply.

8:29:15 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked whether HB 88 could be used to
change venues from the foreign country to the U S. despite the

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 5- March 24, 2011



contract and the fact that the case is being litigated in the
foreign country.

8:31:35 AM

M5. BEARDSLEY ventured that the foreign |law would have to apply
or the courts would have to determ ne whether the choice of |aw
provi sion under that foreign country's |aw was valid.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he is trying to figure out if the
proposed legislation would result in "a race to the court house
between the two litigants,” which nay further aggravate these
types of situations.

M5. BEARDSLEY said she thinks Representative G uenberg may be
correct that that could be the result.

8:33:11 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN suggested that the current conversation
is delving into the realm of the House Judiciary Standing
Conmi ttee.

CHAI R LYNN concurr ed.
8:33: 50 AM

JEFFREY M TTMAN, Executive Director, Anmerican Cvil Liberties
Union (ACLU) of Alaska, stated that there are significant
problems with HB 88, even in [Version B]. He indicated that the
attorney general's legal opinion points to sone of the problens.
He said his testinony would be in response to specific requests
made by Chair Lynn at the previous hearing of HB 88.

VR. MTTMAN said that during the ©previous hearing, M.
Yerushalm [of the Center For Security Policy in Wshington,
D.C] had cited 17 cases across the country in which he
understood shari'a |aw had been inposed on Anerican citizens.
M. Mttman said the ACLU of Al aska reviewed all of those cases,
and he listed sonme of the cases that had been cited where
shari'a |law was not inposed: Amn v. Bakhaty - a child custody
case; People of the State of New York v. Ibrahim Ben Benu -
regarding forced child marriage; Rhodes v. |TT Sheraton Corp -
regarding the rejection of a foreign country as an alternate
forum for resolving a dispute; and Saida Banu Tari konda v. Bade
Saheb Pinjari - regarding an appellate court overruling a | ower
court's recognition of shari'a divorce |aw M. Mttman opined

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 6- March 24, 2011



that the aforenentioned cases show that the U S. Court system
understands issues of comty, procedural due process, and
constitutional rights, and has existing structures with which to
address these issues.

8: 38: 58 AM

MR MTTMAN indicated that [HB 88] would increase the cost of
l[itigation, ~create wuncertainty, and cause harm to Al aska
corporations and individuals. In response to Chair Lynn, he
said Version B may or may not take care of commercial contracts.
He explained that the problem is there can be individuals who
enter into business, as well.

8:40:49 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG directed attention to |anguage on page
2, lines 23-24, of Version B, which read as foll ows:

(f) This section does not apply to a corporation,
partnership, or other form of business association.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he interprets that |anguage to
mean that this section would apply to an individual. He said in
that sense, the "artificial™ group would have greater or
different rights than that of the person.

MR MTTMAN said ACLU of Alaska would interpret that | anguage
the same way, and it could be a potential problem He said

"The bill is beginning to throw out of balance existing, well-
settled areas of the law that allow courts to draw the difficult
deci sions. " He warned there would be conpeting interests. In

response to a question from Chair Lynn as to whether the
interests of Alaska and the U'S. would be paranount, he said
currently there are well settled principles of law, and HB 88 is
necessary. He indicated that the question to ask is whether or
not HB 88 would do harm and he said the answer is yes. He
expl ai ned that the proposed bill would throw out of balance the
existing interpretation, because courts would have to decide if
one side has an advantage over the other.

MR MTTMAN further related that the proposed |egislation was

presented to the legislature by M. Yerushalm as a bill that
would <cite international I aw, but M. Mttman said the
supporting docunentation that was provided to the commttee "is
very clear that this is about ... shari'a |law" He i ndicated

that HB 88 would entangle the State of Alaska in a highly

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -7- March 24, 2011



controversial, problematic, and difficult constitutional area of
law regarding whether the proposed legislation is targeted

against a religion. He said based on the docunentation
provided, the bill wll run up against First Amendnent right
i ssues.

8:46: 22 AM

CHAIR LYNN offered his wunderstanding that shari'a is not a
religion, but is law that stens froma particular religion.

MR M TTMAN proffered, "Shari'a law could be called a system of
| aw that has arisen through the Islamc tradition and a shari'a
court or an Islamc law court.” In response to Chair Lynn, he
illustrated how Hassidic |aw could be called into question under
HB 88. He said when |ooking at HB 88, courts will 1look for
| egislative intent, and he referred again to the material
provided by M. Yerushalm's organization. |In response to Chair
Lynn, he said he was referring to the Uniform American Laws for
American Courts Act.

8:48: 28 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER enphasi zed that the bill sponsor "has not
i ndi cated any organi zation behind this law." He said the source
of law in Alaska is the state's publicly elected |egislators,
who have the right to adopt legislation that nakes it unlawf ul
to apply law that cones from another jurisdiction. He said he
can appreciate M. Mttman's opinion that HB 88 is not needed
but said he is not convinced that the bill would "conplicate
t hi ngs."

8:49: 44 AM

MR MTTMAN clarified that the point he was trying to nake is
t hat when the courts |ook at whether a bill is constitutional or
valid, one of the things they consider is legislative intent,
and legislative record is considered in |legislative intent.

8:50: 31 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN offered his understanding that M.
Mttman had prefaced all his conments by saying, "You don't have

to be an attorney to understand this." He expressed
appreciation for M. Mttman's "dunbing this down for the
benefit of the legislature.” He remarked that he appreciates

M. Mttman's support for the fairness of the court system and

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 8- March 24, 2011



he will look for consistency in that viewpoint in future cases
where the court's opinion may not support that of ACLU of
Al aska. He directed attention to the aforenentioned I egal
opinion and stated that the bottom line is that i ndividual
circunstances are reflected off of the public policy, which is
enacted by the legislature in the laws of Al aska. He said he
has a great deal of "confort with the legal opinion," and he
echoed the comments nade by Representative Keller. He said he
t hi nks "we' ve exhausted this" and he would like to nove the bill
out of conmttee.

8:52: 08 AM

REPRESENTATI VE CARL GATTO, Al aska State Legislature, as sponsor
of HB 88, tal ked about the numerous jurisdictions throughout the
world, and said HB 88 is acknow edgi ng that Al aska cannot absorb
all those jurisdictions into the aws of the state. He said the
intent of HB 88 is to clarify that the laws of the country wll
be superior to the laws of a foreign country.

8:53: 14 AM
REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG reiterated his concern that only an

i ndi vi dual could invoke HB 88, but a corporation would not have
the right to do so. He said that could have the opposite of the

i ntended effect of the bill. He then questioned what the "right
guaranteed by the Constitution of the State of Al aska or the
United States Constitution" - as referred to on page 2, lines
18-19 of Version B - really neans. He referred to the Law of

the Sea Treaty and the question of whether it would violate
Al aska's right to sovereignty. He said HB 88 would "open up a

whol e new panoply of l|egal argunents.” He tal ked about guessing
at the bill drafter's intent.
8:55: 50 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN stated his objection and pointed to
Representative Gatto as the person who wote HB 88.

8:56: 13 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said the question is whether HB 88 is
going to allow a different level of constitutional argunent,

whi ch woul d be t hat it "vi ol ates sonebody' s al | eged
constitutional right to apply any foreign |aw because it
vi ol ates our sovereignty." He said he cannot determ ne "how

good or bad it would be in a given set of circunstances,”" but

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 9- March 24, 2011



said he wants consideration given to this issue, because "it
will come up if this bill passes.”

CHAIR LYNN opined that it would be nore appropriate to take up
that issue in the House Judiciary Standing Conmttee, which is
the next commttee of referral.

8:57: 38 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said he appreciates the sponsor's comng
forward with Version B to take out the |anguage regarding

corporations, because that was problemtic. He renmarked that
other states that have passed [simlar |egislation] have "done
the sane thing." He said he would like the House Judiciary

Standing Comrittee to consider whether there would be any
restrictions for female Al askans in signing contracts in foreign
| ands.

8:58:44 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER noved to report CS HB 88, Version 27-
LS0333\B, Bailey, 3/23/11, out of commttee wth individual
recommendat i ons and t he acconpanyi ng fiscal notes.

8:59: 04 AM
REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG obj ect ed.
8:59:13 AM

A roll call vote was taken. Representatives Keller, Petersen
Johansen, P. W Ilson, Seaton, and Lynn voted in favor of noving
CS HB 88, Version 27-LS0333\B, Bailey, 3/23/11, out of commttee
with individual recomrendations and the acconpanying fiscal
not es. Representati ve G uenberg voted against it. Ther ef or e,
CSHB 88(STA) was reported out of the House State Affairs
Standing Conmittee by a vote of 6-1.

9:00: 10 AM
ADJ OQURNNMENT
There being no further business before the commttee, the House

State Affairs Standing Cormmittee neeting was adjourned at 9:00
a. m

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -10- March 24, 2011



